
 

 

St. Albans City Council 
Minutes of Meeting 

Monday, February 11, 2013 
City Hall, Council Chambers 

 

A meeting of the St. Albans City Council was held on Monday, February 11, 2013, in the council 
chambers at City Hall at 6:30 pm. 
 

Council Present: Mayor Elizabeth Gamache; Aldermen: Chad Spooner, Ryan Doyle, Tim Hawkins, 
Richard Peters, Aaron O’Grady and Jeff Young. 
 

Council Absent: None absent. 

Staff Present: Dominic Cloud, City Manager; Chip Sawyer, Director of Planning and 
Development; Peg Strait, Director of Finance & Administration; Allen Robtoy, Director of Public 
Works and Sue Krupp, City Clerk and Treasurer. 

Visitors: See attached sign‐in sheet. 

Open Session 

 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 
Mayor Gamache called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm and led the pledge of allegiance. 
 

2. Public Comment No public comment was made. 
 

3. Presentation of FY 12 Audit (Fred Duplessis, Sullivan and Powers) 
Mayor Gamache welcomed Fred Duplessis of Sullivan and Powers who performed the FY 12 
financial audit for the City. Mr. Duplessis explained that it is their responsibility to provide an 
opinion on the financial statements and also includes this year, the City’s pension plan. Mr. 
Duplessis proceeded to provide an overview of the City audit. He explained that the 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis provides a narrative of what has occurred this year, and 
is written by management. It is Sullivan and Powers’ responsibility to ensure that the 
information written in this narrative is consistent with what they have audited in the financial 
statements. Mr. Duplessis proceeded to explain that the next section of the audit includes 
traditional financial statements of all of the governmental activities in the General Fund and the 
business type activities which include water and wastewater. He stated that there was a deficit 
of approximately $300,000 in the governmental activities unrestricted and is related to long 
term liabilities that won’t have to be paid for a number of years (i.e. vacation, sick, and comp 
time). At the end of 2012, there was just over $2 million in assets made up of cash and 
receivables. Offsetting those assets is $1,487,000 in liabilities leaving a total fund balance of 
$531,000 which is down from about $740,000 a year ago. Mr. Duplessis stated that some of that 
is money that is already spent which will be repaid and added that with all of the City’s 
assignments, the unassigned fund balance is zero. This translates to the City beginning FY 13 
with no fund balance. Mr. Duplessis stated that many municipalities have some level of fund 
balance and that the GFOA (Government Finance Officers Association) recommends that the 
fund balance be between 10% and 20% of annual expenses. If the City was to do that, it would 
require between $730,000 and $1.4 million. Mr. Doyle asked Mr. Duplessis to confirm whether 
the City should have a general fund balance or unassigned balance in the range of $730,000. Mr. 



 

 

Duplessis confirmed that the recommendation is to have a healthy unassigned balance and 
explained that it is simply a recommendation and each municipality should evaluate its own 
cash flow needs. He further explained that aside from cash flow, the fund would be available for 
emergencies and gives a municipality the ability to manage the tax rate during a time when 
costs are rising. Mr. Young asked if “Other Governmental Funds” was different than “Business 
Funds.” Mr. Duplessis responded that “Other Governmental Funds” is derived of various grants, 
the revolving loan fund, the Solo building fund, Fonda remediation, Taylor Park, capital projects, 
etc. The Enterprise funds, which are for water and wastewater, have positive fund balances, 
both of which have increased this year. The water fund has a balance of $1,386,000 and the 
wastewater balance is $865,000. Mr. Duplessis explained that there is no specific rule of thumb 
for what the Enterprise fund balances are and generally depend on the future needs and life of 
the plant and what the billing cycle is. The City’s pension fund shows the total amount of assets, 
which at June 30 was $3,877,000. Mr. Duplessis stated that at the end of the year, the City’s 
defined benefit pension plan has no unfunded liability and is on track with no underfunding at 
this point. At June 30 the fund is 70% funded, which is in line with the recommendation of the 
actuary. The City will need to continue to contribute $200,000 per year to stay on track based on 
assumptions and interest rates. He proceeded to explain the budget: actual report which shows 
the budget as approved and amended in the amount of $6,874,000 in revenues and expenses. 
The actuals came in at $191,000 in total which are comprised of grants that have been spent 
and also spent an excess of $400,000 in grants than was originally intended. Mr. Duplessis 
explained that instead of breaking even, the City reduced its total fund balance by 
approximately $200,000. The summary of the compliance and internal control portion of the 
audit shows that the opinion of the audit report is unqualified and there were no material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies related to financial reporting and no non‐compliance 
material to financial statements. Mr. Duplessis stated that the City had a completely clean audit 
which is very significant based on everything that was reviewed. Mr. Doyle asked Mr. Duplessis 
to clarify the difference between qualified and unqualified. Mr. Duplessis responded that 
unqualified means that there are no exceptions or deficiencies and reports are fully consistent 
with what is recommended in practice. Mr. Cloud stated that one of the perennial topics of 
conversation is to budget, plan and keep score for the purposes of the general fund on a cash 
basis, while GAAP and GFOA rules require the application of modified accrual standards. He 
further explained that there were some large settlements with the fire department that were 
negotiated and pushed out to July 1st and from a cash basis they occurred in FY 13. Mr. Duplessis 
explained that if the services were performed prior to June 30th then by accounting standards it 
is reflected in the earliest year possible. He further explained that there are some municipalities 
that budget on a cash basis but the problem with that is it does not agree to the audit on the 
front end and reconciliations and adjustments would need to be made. Mr. Cloud stated that 
although the audit shows a $208,000 deficit, we need to remember that a settlement with the 
fire department occurred in that same range. Mr. Young stated that there was a deficit in the 
fund balance in prior years and asked what the trend showed going back farther than two years. 
Mr. Duplessis stated that he is unsure as this is only the second year that Sullivan and Powers 
have conducted the audit for the City. Mr. Young recalled that the City borrowed heavily on tax 
anticipation notes and believed that at some point they would no longer be necessary. Mr. 
Cloud responded that the City is not, generally speaking, within our core functions using tax 
anticipation notes like they were in the past. Instead, the City is using cash management 
software for inter‐fund transfers throughout the fiscal year. Mr. Young asked if going forward, 
staff would be trying to find a way to enhance the cash accrual vices by keeping more cash on 
hand or if they are content with the way it is. Ms. Strait responded that if council chose to have 



 

 

some unassigned fund balance, a conscious decision would need to be made to budget for such 
an item and would require an increase in the tax rate. Mr. Cloud stated that the City is in a 
dramatic period of renewal and investment and that requires more spending to bring the City 
back. At the same time, the City has been investing money for specific capital projects which is 
restricted. Mr. Spooner asked how much money is being put toward the tax anticipation notes 
each year. Ms. Strait responded that there is only one note left, annual payments are 
approximately $80,000, with the balance to be paid off in three years. Mr. Young asked Mr. 
Duplessis if in his opinion, the City is in good shape in terms of its indebtedness compared to 
similar entities. Mr. Duplessis responded that he does not have any benchmarking statistics 
available. Mr. Cloud explained that there was an analysis that came from Shelburne a year or so 
ago that showed the City was in the middle and slightly below with regards to total 
indebtedness measured against the grand list and its ability to service it. Mr. Duplessis stated 
that right now the City’s governmental debt is approximately $1.6 million which is not a lot 
comparably speaking.  Mayor Gamache thanked Mr. Duplessis for his time.  
 

4. Adjourn for Liquor Control (see separate agenda). 
A motion was made by Alderman Young; seconded by Alderman Spooner to recess out of 
regular session and commence as Liquor Control Board at 6:58 p.m. Vote was unanimous, 6‐0. 
(See Liquor Control Board minutes).   

5. Water Treatment Communication Technology Presentation (LCS Controls) 
Mr. Robtoy reiterated that he came before council approximately eight months ago to request 
funds for the telemetry system at the water plant and in the process of gathering information 
for the new system, more issues were discovered. Tom Allen of LCS Controls evaluated these 
issues and is present to discuss his findings with council. Mr. Robtoy introduced Tom Allen of 
LCS Controls. Mr. Allen explained that LCS Controls, located in Rochester, VT, has been in the 
business of municipal water/wastewater control systems since 1981. The company works 
throughout New England and services clients in the St. Albans vicinity including the Champlain 
Water District, South Burlington and Essex. Mr. Allen proceeded to explain the proposed water 
system improvements frequently used terms with definitions (see LCS controls handout). 
 

Mr. Allen explained that this has been an evolutionary process that began with radio 
communication problems related to hardware that is no longer made. He stated that there was 
a gap in the proposal made for replacing the radio communications equipment due to the fact 
that currently the plant has hardware and software that was provided by companies that no 
longer exist. Mr. Allen explained that the proposal includes replacing the Master Telemetry Unit 
(MTU) AutoCon hardware with the newest generation of Programmable Controller (PLC) 
manufactured by Allen Bradley. Mr. Allen stated that Allen Bradley offers worldwide technical 
support and is the most commonly used hardware in this industry in New England. The largest 
risk without this upgrade is a hardware failure that would result in the loss of the application 
software because there are no existing backups. Mr. Allen explained that the process for the 
upgrade would first include backing up the existing computer which would act as a safety 
precaution and provide a baseline to build the new system at the plant and then reverse 
engineer the MTU. Another risk would include a hardware failure in the filter control panel 
which would result in a loss of filter operations for roughly one to two weeks at the plant. Mr. 
Allen stated that the goals are to replace the hardware with something brand new, to integrate 
the existing three pieces, the MTU, Plant Programmable Controller (Plant PLC) and the Filter 
Programmable Controller (Filter PLC) into one system and to get the plant back to being as fully 
documented and backed up from a hardware and software standpoint as possible. Mr. Doyle 



 

 

asked Mr. Allen if there are risks involved with combining the existing components into one unit. 
Mr. Allen responded that the components will still be standalone but the integration will allow 
the pieces the ability to communicate with each other. Mr. Spooner asked if the upgrade would 
allow the system to be controlled remotely. Mr. Allen responded that the systems do have the 
capability to be controlled remotely with the purchase of additional hardware and software 
which costs under $1000. Mayor Gamache asked if there is a cyber security risk involved with 
remote access capability. Mr. Allen stated that there is a small risk as the internet is involved; 
however, there would be a strong firewall incorporated and roughly 40% to 50% of 
municipalities in the state do have remote access capabilities. Mr. Robtoy commented on Mr. 
Allen’s presentation and explained that the City is extremely lucky that no hardware failure has 
occurred thus far based on the age of the technology at the plant.  
 

6. Consider approval of up to $55,000 in water reserve funds to complete communication upgrade 
(D&V) (Allen Robtoy, DPW) 
A motion was made by Alderman Hawkins; seconded by Alderman Spooner to approve up to 
$55,000 in water reserve funds to complete communication upgrade. Vote was unanimous, 6‐
0. 

7. Consider approval of bridge inspection report for culvert on S. Main over Rugg Brook (D&V) 
(Allen Robtoy, DPW) 
Mr. Robtoy explained that each year, the State inspects a number of bridges and this year 
inspected the bridge that crosses Rugg Brook on South Main Street. He explained that this item 
is being brought before council just for the purpose of affirming that they are aware this bridge 
has been inspected. Mr. Robtoy added that the bridge on Lake Street will also need to be 
replaced in the near future and is hoping to obtain grant money for that project. Mr. Spooner 
noted that the public works crew has been plowing a lot of snow into the brook on Lake Street. 
 

A motion was made by Alderman Spooner; seconded by Alderman Young to approve bridge 
inspection report for culvert on S. Main over Rugg Brook. Vote was unanimous, 6‐0. 
 

8. Consider approval of 2013 Certificate of Highway Mileage (D&V) (Allen Robtoy, DPW)  
Mr. Robtoy explained that there are no changes in highway mileage this year and is requesting 
council’s approval as a formality. 
 

A motion was made by Alderman Spooner; seconded by Alderman Peters to approve 2013 
Certificate of Highway Mileage. Vote was unanimous, 6‐0. 

 

9. Financial Report (Peg Strait, Finance Department)  
Ms. Strait began with the general fund and explained that principle & interest for prior years’ 
taxes are running ahead of the target and that collections on prior year’s taxes continue to be 
strong. The State payment for railroad taxes will not come in until May and has trended over the 
past five years between $8,100 and $8,500. She explained that the largest component of 
miscellaneous revenue is the return of workers’ comp premium that occurs after the annual 
workers’ comp audit, which takes place in the spring of each year.  Over the past five years this 
amount has been in the $30,000 to $35,000 range. Zoning fees are slightly short of the January 
target, but typically pick up in the spring of each year.  Assessing revenue includes per parcel 
payments by the State and in the last five years has trended between $21,000 and $22,000. Fire 
department revenue is high due to unbudgeted grants in the amount of approximately $71,000. 
The annual water fee budget in the fire department is $4,000; $4,045 had come in by the end of 



 

 

January. The Public Works department has two small unbudgeted grants for about $3,000 and 
much higher than anticipated excavation permits which are running at approximately 80% of 
budget at the end of January. Mr. Young noted that the Pilot has grown tremendously. Ms. 
Strait stated that the City budgets the Pilot program conservatively and it has been on an 
upward trend. Mr. Young asked if the City’s Pilot payments would be reduced if the State 
building is sold. Ms. Strait responded affirmatively. Mr. Cloud stated that if the State sells their 
existing building and moves into a new building which is leased space, the Pilot payments would 
be reduced, however, the tax revenues would increase substantially. Ms. Strait stated that for 
Recreation, 38% includes debt proceeds for work done at Barlow and lease proceeds for the van 
that was purchased in July. Without those items, Recreation revenue would be at 64% which is 
still higher than the targeted 58.3%.  
 

In terms of expenditures for the General Fund, the only significant item over budget is for the 
window work at City Hall under Planning & Development. Ms. Strait stated that the City has 
spent $50,000 on windows which was budgeted at $25,000 and that the difference will be made 
up with reserved Lemnah proceeds.   
 

Looking at the General Fund in comparison to last year at this time, last year was much more 
robust but for specific reasons. Ms. Strait explained that last year there was a $97,000 highway 
grant from the Department of Transportation which had not been budgeted and an $80,000 
zoning permit from Mylan which was also unbudgeted. She added that the other driver is that 
the receipt of property taxes was 15% further ahead last year than it is this year. 
 

Ms. Strait explained that Other Governmental Funds include funds in the General Fund that are 
not budgeted for and are for specific, self‐supporting projects. These include the interest income 
and expenses for one façade grant in the Revolving Loan Fund, a community defined solutions 
grant from the U.S. Department of Justice which supports the salary and benefits of one police 
officer in the OJP Grant, Municipal Planning Grants used on form‐based code projects, 
Samaritan House Grant, Federal Street Bypass for engineering costs paid to Cross Consulting and 
VHB, Streetscape, Fonda, TIF and Parking Lot Rehab. Ms. Strait added that the TIF fund consists 
of work performed in five separate areas: general TIF consulting, the Moose Lodge, the parking 
garage, the Ace project, and a small amount of preliminary work on the State office building.  
 

For the Water fund, both revenues and expenditures are around 94% of the 58.3% target. The 
primary reason for this is due to the increased work at the Fairfax Dam which accounts for 
approximately 76% of the total capital for the Water fund. Allocation fees are higher than 
budgeted due to the Wagon Wheel and Harbor View projects. Ms. Strait stated that there is a 
small surplus of $15, 022 in the Water fund prior to depreciation. 
 

For the Wastewater fund, revenues and expenses are right at the target at 60% and 61.6%. 
Allocation fees and allocation interest are higher than the target due to the same projects as 
indicated in the Water fund. Ms. Strait stated that there is a slight deficit in the Wastewater 
fund in the amount of $43,000. Under Water and Wastewater Capital Projects, any project at 
50% year to date has been reserved and all others are actual expenditures. Mr. Spooner asked 
where the grant money for Lake Street in reference to the Streetscape Project is accounted for. 
Mr. Cloud confirmed the grant has been received but does not show up on the financial report 
spreadsheet because no money is being spent yet. Mr. Young asked how the reimbursement of 
allocation fees will be reflected in the budget. Ms. Strait responded that much of that will be 
prior period adjustments and won’t hit the expenses for the current fiscal year and any overages 



 

 

received for the current fiscal year will increase expenses or increase a deficit. Mr. Young asked 
when that reimbursement will take place. Mr. Cloud responded that it would take place within 
thirty days of the decision. 

 

10. First Reading: Parking Ordinance Amendment (Chip Sawyer) 
a) Amendment follows recommendation of parking committee (2.5 hrs. only, from 9‐6, M‐S) 

and allows sign to be mounted on light pole. 
Mr. Sawyer recapped on a past decision made by the Master Plan Parking Committee and 
then the Downtown board and finally by the City council on a parking program. This decision 
included a change in the effective time of the 2 ½ hour parking on Main Street which is 
currently Mondays, 8:00 am – 9:00 pm and Saturdays, 8:00 am – 5:00 pm. Mr. Sawyer 
stated that the recommendation at that time was that the limited time period be effective 
from 9:00 am – 6:00 pm, Monday ‐ Saturday.  
 

Mr. Sawyer stated that in addition, when the section of Streetscape across from City Hall 
was finished, the new parking signs were installed which were too large and included too 
much information on them. The issue was presented to the Design team and asked if the 
signs could be made smaller and attached on the street lights. Mr. Sawyer stated that he is 
proposing to adjust the City parking ordinance to reflect that parking would be effective 
from 9:00 am – 6:00 pm, Monday – Saturday with the exception of holidays. Mr. Sawyer 
further stated that when he was reviewing the ordinance, he realized that some of the 
section numbers of the ordinance were incorrect and is proposing that they be changed 
back to the correct numbers. 
 

In reference to Section 5351, numbers 12 and 13 (See handout), Mr. Doyle asked for 
clarification of “parking lot No. 1” and “parking lot No. 2.” Mr. Sawyer stated that the 
parking lots are numbered mostly for the purpose of references in the ordinance and not for 
the public. He added that he believes No. 1 is the City Hall or the courthouse parking lot and 
No. 2 is the Core parking lot. Mr. Sawyer stated that the parking lots by numbers are 
explained in other sections of the ordinance. Mr. Doyle noted that under Section 5351, the 
words “lot” and “property line” is used interchangeably and could be confusing. 

 

11. Update on Fountain Planning and request to include restoration of original flow characteristics 
as design parameter (Chip Sawyer)  
Mr. Sawyer explained that the team has been working with ORW Landscaping of White River 
Junction who now has a lot of information on the fountain. He explained that they have 
conducted a cost benefit analysis on a system that re‐circulates water with pumps on a periodic 
basis using the municipal water system. That analysis reveals that the City should look into a re‐
circulating system that would have its own associated operating and maintenance costs. 
Whether the water is re‐circulating or hooked up directly to the fountain, Mr. Sawyer explained 
that they have asked the engineers to provide some controls that oversee the water going to 
certain parts of the fountain and how the engineers configure the internal piping of the fountain 
is dependent on what we want the water to look like. Mr. Sawyer explained that one option 
includes returning the fountain to its historic spray pattern the way it was originally designed; 
however, some original concerns have been raised about the wear and tear that the original 
spray pattern might have on the fountain. Mr. Young’s research has indicated that with 
fountains of this design, they do not implement the spray pattern anymore because of water 
loss and the wear and tear on the structure. Mr. Sawyer stated that it could be possible to 
return to the original spray pattern but install controls to turn it down but the design team 



 

 

would need further input from council to move forward. Mr. Doyle asked Mr. Sawyer if there 
was a cost comparison between the different spray options. Mr. Sawyer responded that the 
engineers could provide a cost comparison and that a more vigorous spray pattern will cost 
more but explained that he needs to know from council if they even want to look into that 
option. Mayor Gamache asked Mr. Sawyer to describe the alternative if original spray pattern 
was not considered. Mr. Sawyer explained that the alternative would show water pouring out of 
the urn that the maiden is holding at the top of the fountain pouring into the top pool and 
would then come out of the gargoyle’s mouth into the next pool below and then pour over the 
maiden’s below into the main, base pool. He added that it would be possible to have some small 
sprays in addition that would shoot from the edge of the pool into the middle. Mr. Young stated 
that by 1930, all of the spray patterns in the fountain were gone due to calcification in the 
sprayer. He added that there are a dozen fountains in the United States made by the same 
company as the fountain in Taylor Park and only one still uses the spray pattern. Mr. Young 
stated that his concern is that the City goes too far in restoration making it prohibitively 
expensive and would recommend using the overflow pattern which is very consistent with what 
fountains are doing today and could also include a water action in the base pool. He explained 
that the overflow pattern would be substantially easier to maintain. Mr. Spooner stated that he 
would like to see a spray and asked if the original grassy knoll would be placed around the 
fountain and if the base pool would have the same depth. Mr. Sawyer stated that the engineers 
are still conducting an analysis of the pool itself and that the safety codes today are much more 
stringent. Mayor Gamache asked how much it would add to the design cost to include the 
original spray pattern as an option. Mr. Sawyer stated that he believes it would be within 
budget. Mr. Young commented that even if the original spray pattern is a viable option cost 
wise, it is not a functional option. Mr. Spooner asked Mr. Sawyer what the timeframe is for the 
study. Mr. Sawyer stated that they are hopeful the study will be completed in the next couple of 
weeks. Council’s general consensus was that they would like to see other options that would 
preserve a flowing water element. Mr. Bean commented that one option might be to primarily 
use the trickle effect instead of the original spray pattern which is damaging but to have the 
option to turn on the historic spray pattern for special events. 
 

12. Consider approval of GMP utility pole request (D&V) (Chip Sawyer) 
Mr. Sawyer explained that Green Mountain Power is requesting permission to replace one utility 
pole on Houghton Street and install a new one on Lower Welden Street near the entrance to 
Mylan. Mr. Sawyer stated that he does not feel it will detract much from the area as it is an 
industrial setting. Mr. Doyle asked whether the new pole would interfere with the Federal Street 
plan which calls for a new sidewalk. Mr. Sawyer responded that it would not. 
 

A motion was made by Alderman O’Grady; seconded by Alderman Young to approve GMP’s 
utility pole request. Vote was unanimous, 6‐0. 
 

13. Mayor’s Report Mayor Gamache stated that she had nothing new to report. 
 

14. City Manager Report 
a) Notification that Town of St. Albans will no longer provide funds to equalize recreation 

participant fees 
Mr. Cloud explained that the City has received notification from the Town of St. Albans that 
the Recreation Agreement is effectively null and void as of July 1, 2013. Participants from St. 
Albans Town will be treated as non‐residents. Mr. Cloud stated that there is no anticipated 
impact on City residents in the fees. He added that presumably while council would 



 

 

continue to entertain board members on the Recreation Committee from the Town, they 
would be appointees of the City, not of the Selectboard. Mr. Cloud stated that there will be 
more information to come as we approach July 1st.   
 

15. Clerk/Treasurer Report Mrs. Krupp stated that she had nothing new to report. 
 

16. Warrants  
a) 12/6/12; 12/19/12; 1/9/13 & 1/23/13 

A motion was made by Alderman Peters; seconded by Alderman Hawkins to approve 
warrants from 12/6/12, 12/19/12, 1/9/13 & 1/23/13. Vote was unanimous, 6‐0. 
 

17. Minutes 
a) 12/10/12; 12/20/12; 1/7/13 & 1/12/13 

A motion was made by Alderman Spooner; seconded by Alderman Young to approve 
minutes from 12/10/12. Vote was unanimous, 5‐0 with Alderman Hawkins abstaining. 
 

A motion was made by Alderman Spooner; seconded by Alderman Young to approve 
minutes from 12/20/12. Vote was unanimous, 4‐0 with Aldermen O’Grady & Peters 
abstained. 
 

A motion was made by Alderman Spooner; seconded by Alderman Young to approve 
minutes from 1/7/13. Vote was unanimous, 5‐0 with Alderman O’Grady abstaining. 
 

A motion was made by Alderman Spooner; seconded by Alderman Young to approve 
minutes from 1/12/13. Vote was unanimous, 5‐0 with Alderman O’Grady abstaining. 
 

18. Other Business 
Mr. Young stated that the grant money has been received for horticultural work in the park and 
has a scaled drawing of the new 600 foot Church Street garden which will be going in the park 
this year. He added that many community members are helping with the work and is hopeful to 
have a mock up and proposal that can be viewed at Town Meeting Day. Mayor Gamache asked 
Mr. Young if he will have the mechanism to capture comments from residents on Town Meeting 
Day. Mr. Young stated that he was planning to hand out comment cards. 
 

Mayor Gamache explained that there are a couple of issues that need to be addressed as we 
move forward with Streetscape improvements that relate to the removal of the canopy in front 
of Bank North. Mr. Sawyer stated that there is a building permit for the canopy but an easement 
to use the right‐of‐way was never given. He explained that the bank is amenable to having the 
canopy brought down as part of the project and whatever is put in its place will follow the City’s 
current design regulations. Mayor Gamache stated that the gateway that leads down the alley 
also needs to be addressed. Mr. Sawyer stated that the gateway would need to come down 
temporarily for Streetscape construction but feels it should come down permanently to allow 
for sidewalk maintenance in the future. He further explained that they have come up with an 
idea that pleases the two adjacent businesses which is to take the fascia and façade of the 
covered walk way, remove the first segment over the sidewalk and place the façade on the next 
segment down. All of the design would still remain and be flush with the businesses. Mr. Doyle 
asked if that work would be something the Public Works department would handle. Mr. Sawyer 
responded that it would be done by the contractors whose estimates are reasonable. 
 



 

 

Mayor Gamache noted that there will be a public hearing scheduled for February 25th to answer 
questions about the ballot items for Town Meeting Day. Mayor Gamache also recognized the 
meeting as Alderman Peter’s last regular meeting prior to his retirement. Mr. Peters thanked all 
of the voters and the citizens of Ward 2 for their support. He also thanked council and Mr. Cloud 
and his administration for their fairness in making decisions and commented on how fortunate 
the City is for the future.  
 

Mr. Bean commented on his disappointment that the Town chose not to participate with cost 
sharing in the City’s Recreation program and asked if there was a specific reason for this choice. 
Mr. Cloud responded that the email specified that the Town thought that they were subsidizing 
the City’s programs. Mayor Gamache added that the City’s position is that it would never 
subsidize another community at the expense of its own residents and believes that the City has 
a very fair and equitable fee structure. 
 

19. Adjourn 
A motion was made by Alderman Hawkins; seconded by Alderman Doyle to adjourn meeting 
at 9:15 pm. Vote was unanimous, 6‐0. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Kristen Knoff 
Administrative Coordinator 

 


